
NOTE:  The Council will take a 5-minute recess at 8:00 pm. 

     HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

 HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 AGENDA 

MONDAY      DECEMBER 18TH, 2017  7:00 P.M. 

6:00 p.m. – Finance & Administration Committee 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

B. CONSENT AGENDA

1. SIGNATURES

2. SECRETARY’S REPORTS

a. November 20th, 2017 Council Meeting Minutes

3. COMMUNICATIONS

a. Notification of the 2018 Penobscot County mil rate and amount of the 
Town of Hampden’s valuation

b. Notification regarding an upcoming Board of Appeals meeting to be 
held on Tuesday, December 19th at 7:00 p.m.

c. Notification of award of an MMA Safety Enhancement Grant
d. Notification of an MDOT cyclical  pavement resurfacing project for 2.53 

miles of Coldbrook Road in the Spring/Summer of 2018
e. Notification of an MDOT cyclical pavement resurfacing project for 7.5 

miles of Route 9 in the Spring/Summer of 2018
f. Summary of new election laws effective November 1, 2017 pertaining 

to the administration of elections
g. Notification of the maturation of two general obligation bonds

4. REPORTS

a. Finance Committee Minutes – November 6th and November 20th
b. Infrastructure Committee Minutes – None
c. Planning & Development Committee Minutes – November 1st and 

November 15th
d. Services Committee Minutes – October 10th and November 13th

e. Environmental Trust Committee Minutes – September 12th

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

D. POLICY AGENDA 



MONDAY                              DECEMBER 18th, 2017                                       7:00 P.M. 

 

2 

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS –  
 

a. Presentation of the Department of Public Safety Five-Year Plan – 
presented by Sargent Bailey 
       
  

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS - None 
         
 

3. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS 
 

a. Re-appointment of Michael Jellison to the Lura E. Hoit Memorial Pool 
Board of Trustees - referral from Services Committee 
 

b. Re-appointment of James D. Feverston to the Lura E. Hoit Memorial 
Pool Board of Trustees – referral from Services Committee 
 

c. Re-appointment of Yvonne Lambert to the Edythe L. Dyer Library 
Board of Trustees – referral from Services Committee  
 

d. Re-appointment of Lowell T. Sherwood, Jr. to the Board of Assessment 
Review – referral from Finance & Administration Committee 
 

e. Re-appointment of J.Kelley Wiltbank to the Planning Board – referral 
from Planning & Development Committee 
              
 

4. OLD BUSINESS - None 
       

5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Request for authorization for a budget adjustment of the FY18 budget, 
to transfer the amount of $100,000 from Overlay into the Municipal 
Building Reserve (3-702-00) – referral from Finance & Administration 
Committee 
 

b. Request for authorization for the expenditure of an amount up to 
$100,000 from the Municipal Building Reserve (3-702-00) for the 
purpose of paying for mold remediation and related expenses – referral 
from Finance & Administration Committee 
 

c. Request for authorization for waiver, pursuant to Sec. 4(a) of the Bid 
Procedure for Public Purchasing, to allow for the procurement of mold 
remediation and related expenses using a quotation system instead of 
an Invitation for Bids, to reduce the bidding cost and the amount of 
time needed for completion – referral from Finance & Administration 
Committee 
 



MONDAY           DECEMBER 18th, 2017    7:00 P.M. 

3 

d. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $1,000 from the
Matching Grant Reserve (3-780-00) for the purpose of paying
Hampden’s share of a Safety Enhancement Grant for two SCBA
masks – referral from Finance & Administration Committee

e. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $4,036 from the
Environmental Trust, Principal for the purpose of reimbursement of
eligible landfill post-closure monitoring expenses – referral from
Finance & Administration Committee

f. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $1,275.95 from the
Environmental Trust, Income for the purpose of reimbursement of
eligible stormwater management expenses – referral from Finance &
Administration Committee

g. Request for authorization authorization for waiver, pursuant to Sec.
4(a) of the Bid Procedure for Public Purchasing, to allow for the
procurement of a replacement dock at the Marina using a quotation
system instead of an Invitation for Bids, due to a limited number of
qualified vendors – referral from Finance & Administration Committee

h. Request for authorization for an abatement of third quarter sewer
charges for resident Seren Bruce at 29 Sunrise Lane – referral from
Finance & Administration Committee

i. Council approval of Council Order 2017-07, proposed amendments to
the Transfer Station Decal Issuance Policy – referral from Finance &
Administration Committee

j. Council approval of Council Order 2017-08, proposed amendments to
the Transfer Station Rules and Regulations – referral from Finance &
Administration Committee

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS

F. MANAGER’S REPORT

G. COUNCILORS’ COMMENTS

H. ADJOURNMENT



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-2-a













townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-a











townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-b



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-c



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-d



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-e



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-f





townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-g

















FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, November 6th, 2017 

MINUTES  

Hampden Town Office 

Attending:  
Councilor Greg Sirois, Chair   Councilor Dennis Marble  

 Mayor David Ryder     Town Manager Angus Jennings 
Councilor Ivan McPike    Assessor Kelly Karter 
Councilor Stephen Wilde    Rec Directory Shelley Abbott 

 Councilor Mark Cormier    Resident Allison Berube  
 Councilor Terry McAvoy    About 4 residents 
  
Chairman Sirois called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

1. Meeting Minutes  

 

a. October 16th, 2017 – Motion by Councilor Marble seconded by 

Councilor McAvoy to approve the minutes as written. Passed 6-0. 

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Warrants were reviewed and signed. 

 

3. Old Business  

 

4. New Business 
 

a. Consideration of a recommendation to Council to exercise the 
Put Option for the sale of PERC ownership interests – Manager 
Jennings provided background based on the materials in the packet. 
Motion by Councilor Marble seconded by Councilor McAvoy to 
recommend that the Council exercise the Town of Hampden Put 
Option for the sale of its ownership interests in PERC. Motion passed 
6-0.  
 

b. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $6,720 from the Economic Development Reserve 
Account (3-727-00) for the purpose of purchasing town center 
flags – referral from Infrastructure Committee – Mayor Ryder 
summarized the recommendation in favor of this funding from the 
Infrastructure Committee, noting that the estimated cost to repair the 
electrical fixtures to allow safe installation of holiday lighting on the 
poles would be very costly. Manager Jennings clarified that the 
amount of requested authorization is $8,280 which includes the 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-4-a



amount added to the reserve account in the FY18 budget plus the 
previous balance in that account. There was a motion by Councilor 
McPike seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council 
authorization of $8,280 from the Economic Development Reserve 
Account for the purpose of purchasing town center flags. Motion 
passed 6-0. 

 

c. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $6,800 from the Roads/Streets Reserve Account 
(3-761-00) for the purpose of town center sidewalk/crosswalk 
engineering – Manager Jennings summarized the materials in the 
meeting packet. Mayor Ryder expressed support to add two 
crosswalks in the Town Center (at Cottage Street and at the Kiwanis 
driveway) but said that MaineDOT doesn’t require engineered plans, 
and that he does not support the funding request. He said he 
recommends that we get construction quotes and put the funds 
toward constructing the crosswalks. There was discussion among the 
Councilors and Manager regarding whether engineered plans would 
be needed. Resident Allison Berube said that if the contract is written 
correctly that the contractor would absorb the responsibility to ensure 
ADA compliance. Mayor Ryder said it’s all spelled out in the MDOT 
specs. There was a motion by Councilor Marble seconded by 
Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council authorization of the 
requested funding. The motion failed 0-6.  

 

d. Recommend Council authorization for contract extension with 
Woodard & Curran for the design for parking and permitting on 
the Lura Hoit Pool Site – Manager Jennings summarized the cost 
proposal received from Woodard & Curran to bring the parking lot 
and stormwater features through the DEP and site plan approval 
processes. This had been requested by the Services Committee at 
its October meeting. He said the existing contract with W&C provides 
that the contract can be extended, but also provides the Town the 
option to re-bid services. The Services Committee had indicated that 
they intended to stay with W&C, but at that time had not received the 
cost proposal. Manager Jennings said he thinks the cost proposal is 
somewhat higher that people expected, but his discussions with Jim 
Wilson provided context for the cost, as Woodard & Curran has not 
taken a project through the Site Location of Development permit 
process for less than mid $60,000 range. Mr. Wilson had described 
to Manager Jennings that the cost drivers included the overall site 
stormwater design, and taking into account potential future use of the 
site. The depth of the current pipeline crossing the site is an 
important control point, and if there were fields above the pipeline in 
the future this would affect elevations, grading, and stormwater 
management design throughout the site. Although a future field is not 



part of what is presently being proposed, Mr. Wilson told Manager 
Jennings it was his recommendation that this approach would best 
preserve the Town’s future options for the site and would best 
advance the initial Town direction within this process which was to 
design things with the long-term in mind so that piping and 
stormwater structures would not need to be torn up and redone in the 
future. Manager Jennings said that the proposed fee of $51,000 was 
a lot of money, no question about it. 
 
Chairman Sirois asked for clarification as to the current agenda item. 
Manager Jennings said the current item is to consider authorizing an 
extension of the contract, and the next agenda item relates to the 
authorization of reserve funding based on the cost proposal. 
 
Councilor McAvoy expressed confusion about whether the proposal 
takes into account the pipeline. Manager Jennings said that it does 
take into account the pipeline, so that this would be taken into 
account if additional development occurred on the site in the future. 
Manager Jennings said that if the parking is the last thing the Town 
ever does on the site, that the engineering costs could be lower. 
 
Councilor McAvoy said that fields have nothing to do with impervious 
surface or stormwater runoff. Manager Jennings said that fields do 
have different stormwater runoff patterns than wooded area. He 
acknowledged that fields are not impervious surface, but that their 
location and elevation would affect runoff patterns. Paved area to 
serve the fields would also be a factor. 
 
Councilor McPike said he also feels lost and is trying to get his arms 
around it. He said he’s looking for a cost figure. He asked will it cost 
$51,000 to tell us what it will cost us? Manager Jennings said no, that 
is the cost to get it through DEP permitting and local Site Plan 
Review, which would take the design work to date to an engineering 
level, which would refine the construction cost estimates. The 
estimated construction cost estimates already provided by Woodard 
& Curran are the best available information, but would be more 
refined and more accurate based on additional detailed engineering. 
 
Councilor Marble said we need engineered plans in order to get DEP 
permitting. He asked, if the Town were to switch vendors, what might 
be lost and if this is a concern? Manager Jennings said that the 
contract provides that the work products created to date belong to the 
Town and are not proprietary, so could be transferred to another 
vendor. He said that, if the Council didn’t change the conceptual plan 
W&C prepared, he didn’t think it would be a significant cost impact, 



but would impact staff time in terms of scoping and bidding out the 
next phase of work.  
 
Chairman Sirois said that in order to move the process forward we 
need to either proceed with Woodard & Curran or seek another 
vendor. Manager Jennings said yes, a professional engineer will 
need to create and stamp the plans.  
 
Councilor McPike said if we don’t want to spend that amount of 
money, this whole thing stops? Manager Jennings said that we would 
need to figure out if there is another way forward and said he’s open 
to suggestions. He said Mr. Wilson had represented to him that the 
cost proposal he provided was, in his opinion, realistic.  
 
Mayor Ryder said if we cut our losses with Woodard & Curran we 
could bring them back at a later date. He said he plans to vote no. 
 
Councilor McAvoy was surprised that the potential future fields was 
part of Mr. Wilson’s thinking since he thought it was made very clear 
at the Services Committee meeting that the scope was only for the 
parking and stormwater. Manager Jennings said Mr. Wilson 
understands the direction is just the parking, but that his 
understanding of the Town’s objectives is that whatever is done 
would not need to be torn up and redone in the future if a future 
Council wanted to do more on the site. Manager Jennings 
acknowledged to Councilor McAvoy that Mr. Wilson may be looking 
at this in a way that he as a Councilor may think is outside the scope 
but that Mr. Wilson is trying to be responsive to the objective in the 
initial scope. Manager Jennings said that whether Mr. Wilson got that 
right is subject to debate.  
 
Councilor McAvoy said that, at the public meetings, he didn’t hear 
more people supporting fields than those not supporting the work. 
Councilor McPike said he thought they would be given two costs, one 
for the parking and stormwater and another to also do fields, and that 
he now sees it will cost $51,000 to get that information. Mayor Ryder 
said no, we wouldn’t even get that, the scope now is limited to just 
parking and stormwater. Manager Jennings confirmed that is correct, 
the cost would include engineering the parking and stormwater, 
including stormwater management for current uses on site 
constructed since 1973, and would take that through DEP and local 
permitting. Manager Jennings referred to language in the proposal 
that says “if during DEP kickoff or design we identify environmental 
impacts not currently anticipated, or if DEP asks that the Post Office 
site be reviewed, we will meet with you to refine our approach 
including fee impacts.”  Manager Jennings said he didn’t initially 



understand the language and saw it as a risk factor so had followed 
up with Mr. Wilson, and Mr. Wilson clarified that the Moyse 
Environmental review was focused on undeveloped areas of the site 
that may be developable. For example, Moyse did not flag wetlands 
on the east side of the Town Office. The W&C proposal was clarifying 
that, if DEP asked for additional review of environmental areas such 
as those, this would add cost and would add permitting time. Certain 
types of analysis, such as vernal pools, can only be done during a 
certain time of year, and this could result in delays that could affect 
the potential to be in a position to construct parking prior to the fall 
2018 season. He said Mr. Wilson did not expect this, but that it was 
important that the Town understand this could happen. Manager 
Jennings described that potential – for DEP to require additional 
wetlands delineation, for example – as the biggest risk factor he sees 
to the overall project timeline. Other than that, the timeline will 
depend on when we get someone under contract for the next phase 
of engineering and permitting. 
 
Chairman Sirois called for any further discussion or public comment. 
 
Resident Allison Berube complimented the Committee on their critical 
thinking. She appreciates the work that has been done. She said the 
cost per parking spot was extremely high. After the $51,000, then we 
have to construct the stormwater, all before we can add a single 
parking spot. She supports voting this down tonight, to look at other 
options. She would support the Town looking into buying the 25 acre 
parcel across from her house on Main Road North as a better option 
for fields. She also said people could park at the Town Office and 
walk to the Pool site fields. She thanked the Councilors for their hard 
work. 
 
Motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Councilor Marble to 
recommend Council authorization to extend the contract with 
Woodard & Curran for engineering and permitting at the Lura Hoit 
Pool site. Motion failed 0-6. 

 

e. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $51,000 from the Rec Area Reserve Account (3-
767-00) for the purpose of contract extension with Woodard & 
Curran for engineering services for parking and permitting on 
the Lura Hoit Pool Site – There was a motion by Councilor McPike 
seconded by Councilor Marble to recommend the requested funding. 
The motion failed 0-6. Manager Jennings asked that the Committee 
provide some direction as to whether this matter would next be 
considered at the November Services Committee meeting. Mayor 
Ryder said that would be too soon and it was agreed this would be 



considered again at the December meeting of the Services 
Committee. Councilor Marble said that we had contracted with 
Woodard & Curran because they’re more knowledgeable than the 
Town regarding the DEP permitting process, and he said he doesn’t 
want to lose the value of the work that has been done and would like 
to build on that work. Mayor Ryder said we’re not mothballing 
anything, but we want to see if there’s a better way to move forward. 

 

f. Referral to Council for referral to Public Hearing, a proposed 
Zoning Map Amendment to reflect the proposed rezoning of a 
portion of parcel 33-0-11-A located at the intersection of US 
Route 202 and Coldbrook Road, from Residential A District to 
Commercial Services District – referral from Planning & 
Development Committee – Councilor McPike, Chairman of the P&D 
Committee, said that the Committee is supportive of the proposed 
rezoning. Motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Councilor Marble 
to refer to Council for referral to public hearing proposed zoning 
amendments related to recreational marijuana. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

g. Referral to Council for referral to Public Hearing, a proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment to define Retail Marijuana, Retail 
Marijuana Store, Retail Marijuana Social Clubs, Drug Store or 
Pharmacy and to amend existing Definitions relative to Retail 
Marijuana and related uses, with the intent to prohibit Retail 
Marijuana Stores and Retail Marijuana Social Clubs in the Town 
of Hampden – referral from Planning & Development Committee 
– Motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Councilor Marble to refer 
to Council for referral to public hearing proposed zoning amendments 
related to recreational marijuana. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

h. Request for a tax abatement for property located at 501 Western 
Avenue for FY 14-15, FY 15-16 and FY 16-17 – Assessor Karter 
summarized the materials in the meeting packet. Motion by Councilor 
Marble seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council 
approval of the requested tax abatements for the years noted and in 
the amounts recommended by the Assessor. Motion passed 6-0.  
 

5. Public Comment – None.  
 

6. Committee Member Comments – None. 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:51 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted – Angus Jennings, Town Manager 



 

 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, November 20th, 2017 

MINUTES  

Hampden Town Office 

Attending:  
Councilor Greg Sirois, Chair  Councilor Mark Cormier  

 Mayor David Ryder    Councilor Dennis Marble 
Councilor Terry McAvoy   Councilor Ivan McPike 

 Councilor Stephen Wilde   Town Manager Angus Jennings  
       Town Clerk Paula Scott 
 
Chairman Sirois called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

1. Meeting Minutes – None.  

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Warrants were reviewed and signed. 

 

3. Old Business  

 

4. New Business 
 

a. Auditor’s letter regarding completing the process to move from 
the method of enterprise accounting to revenue and expense 
accounting in the recreation and pool departments – Manager 
Jennings summarized the Auditor’s memo in the packet, noting that 
the recommended transfer of funds was part of completing the 
transfer away from enterprise budgeting. He said he is not seeking a 
Council vote tonight but that this item will be placed on the next 
agenda for action. Councilor Marble said that it sounds pretty 
straightforward. Manager Jennings said that his understanding is that 
the Council’s policy intent in establishing enterprise budgeting in the 
first place was to make funds above expenses available for 
recreation and pool uses. Councilor McAvoy asked whether the funds 
could simply be put into the General Fund instead of reserve and 
Manager Jennings said that the Council has the authority to put the 
funds into the General Fund. Manager Jennings noted that a 
representative from the Auditor’s firm would be present at the next 
meeting to answer questions. 
 

b. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $6,300 from the Roads/Streets Reserve Account 
(3-761-00) for town center crosswalk engineering – referral from 



 

 

Services Committee – There was a motion by Councilor Marble 
seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council authorization 
for the expenditure of an amount up to $6,300 from the 
Roads/Streets Reserve Account for town center crosswalk 
engineering. Motion passed 6-1 with Mayor Ryder in opposition. 
 

c. Town Manager’s Financial Summary Report – Manager Jennings 
said that the report in the packet demonstrates month-end bank 
balances over the past couple of years and shows a generally 
positive trend. He said he is continuing to work on a format for 
periodic reporting to the Finance Committee and that this will be part 
of it. He noted that the bank balances do not reflect a true picture of 
financial resources because they do not factor in funds that are there 
because of interfund transfers, TANs, etc., but that he has a different 
report that he updates regularly that does include this information. 
This item was informational and no action was taken. 

 

5. Public Comment – None.  
 

6. Committee Member Comments – None. 
 

7. Adjournment 
 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:42 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted –   
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-4-c













townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-4-d





















townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-4-e







FIVE-YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN 

2018-2023 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-1-a



HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 1 

Table of Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Strategic Planning Methodology ................................................................................................................... 3 

Hampden Public Safety Today ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Geography/Population Trends .................................................................................................................. 4 

Workload Trends ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

Crime Trends - Index Crimes ..................................................................................................................... 6 

Traffic Trends ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

Capital Improvement and Equipment ....................................................................................................... 9 

Grants ........................................................................................................................................................ 9 

Emerging Activity .................................................................................................................................... 10 

Community Services ................................................................................................................................ 11 

Our Vision .................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Our Mission ............................................................................................................................................. 11 

Statement of Values ................................................................................................................................ 11 

Goals ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Plan for Attainment .................................................................................................................................... 13 

GOAL 1:  Crime ........................................................................................................................................ 13 

GOAL 2:  Community Outreach ............................................................................................................... 13 

GOAL 3:  Traffic Safety ............................................................................................................................ 14 

GOAL 4:  Recruitment and Retention ..................................................................................................... 15 

GOAL 5:  Pre-incident Planning ............................................................................................................... 15 

GOAL 6:  Response to service ................................................................................................................. 16 

GOAL 7:  Public Education ....................................................................................................................... 16 

GOAL 8:  Technology ............................................................................................................................... 17 

GOAL 9:  Promote Health and Wellness ................................................................................................. 17 

Appendix #1 – Telecare Program ............................................................................................................ 19 

Appendix #2 – Good Neighbor Program ................................................................................................. 20 

Appendix #3 – Coffee with Public Safety ................................................................................................ 21 

Appendix #4 – Smoke Alarm Program .................................................................................................... 22 

Appendix   #5 – 2011 Satisfaction Survey Synopsis ................................................................................ 23 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 2 

 

 

Introduction 
 
Hampden Public Safety is a progressive public safety agency providing police, fire, emergency 
medical and code enforcement services for the citizens of Hampden.   Our core belief is to work 
in partnership with the community to provide services that enhance the quality of life for all 
citizens.  To assist in identifying and providing those services, Hampden Public Safety endorses 
a thorough and complete strategic planning process.    

The strategic planning process seeks to answer the following questions: 

1.  Where are we now?  (What are our strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats?)  
2.  Where do we want to be?  (5 years) 
3.   How will we get there?  (What are our goals?  What is our plan to reach those goals?) 
4.   How will we know when we get there?  (What are our performance measures?)   

A strategic plan is used to set priorities and allocate resources toward a common goal.  It’s 
intended to serve as a guide, subject to adjustments, to reflect the changing environments in 
which the agency must operate.  An effective strategic plan not only guides toward a common 
goal, but identifies when success has been accomplished.   

The employees of Hampden Public Safety are committed to using the strategic plan as a guide to 
accomplish the vision of the agency, “To enhance the quality of life for all citizens.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 3 

 

Strategic Planning Methodology 
 

1. Complete a SWOT analysis (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and threats).  A   
SWOT analysis is a comprehensive assessment of the internal and external factors that 
affect the agency and its ability to provide public safety services. 
 

2. Hampden Public Safety Supervisors meet monthly to discuss agency issues.  The broad 
strategic goals were developed over several months of discussion and deliberation on the 
future direction of Hampden Public Safety. 
 

3. Supervisors met with employees and received feedback on specific objectives for each of 
the goals.  The objectives are the specific tasks and activities identified to assist the 
agency in obtaining the goals.   
 

4. The Hampden Public Safety Advisory Committee reviewed the goals and were given the 
opportunity to provide feedback and input.  The committee is made of citizens who meet 
regularly to discuss, support and provide input on a variety of public safety issues.   
 

5. Supervisors collated the input from employees and citizens.  The goals and objectives 
were finalized and composed into a workable plan.   
 

6. Progress made toward attainment of goals and objectives will be discussed at each 
monthly supervisor meeting.  If needed, modifications to the plan can be made then. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 4 

 

Hampden Public Safety Today 
 

Hampden Public Safety provides police, fire, emergency medical and code enforcement for the 
citizens of Hampden.  The department is led by a Public Safety Director. 

Police Department: Consists of 11 full-time officers and several reserve officers.  There are 
three Sergeants, one of which is assigned to Hampden Academy as the School Resource Officer.  
One of the full-time officers is assigned to the Maine Drug Enforcement Agency and another has 
the role of Investigator.  The Investigator handles sex crimes and other complex criminal 
investigations.  There are 1.5 officers per 1,000 residents.  In 2014, the national average was 2.3 
and the New England average was 2.2.    

Fire Department: Consists of 11 full-time employees, most licensed at the paramedic level and 
several call (part-time) firefighters.  There are three lieutenants with one responsible for fire 
inspections.  Two other paramedic/firefighters are responsible for code enforcement and building 
inspections.   

 Fire Inspector/Health Inspector- Reviews all fire and life safety issues. Investigates 
Health Officer related complaints and serves as the alternate Building Inspector and Code 
Enforcement Officer. 

 Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector- Reviews all land use, shore land use 
and other zoning related issues.  Review, permit, and inspect all internal plumbing and 
SSWD installations.  Manages Code Enforcement Division workflow and serves as an 
alternate Fire and Building Inspector.  

 Building Inspector- Reviews any Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code (MUBEC) 
issue.  Review, permit, and inspect all buildings for MUBEC Compliance and serves as 
an alternate Plumbing Inspector. 
 

Geography/Population Trends 
 
The Town of Hampden is located along the Penobscot River, has 39 square miles and 
approximately 101 miles of roadways.  Hampden is home to Regional School Unit #22 which 
comprises the towns of Hampden, Winterport, Newburgh and Frankfort.  Currently there are 
approximately 2,200 students in the school district.   Hampden has a significant residential base 
with several small sub-divisions scattered throughout the community.  Hampden is home to 
several businesses ranging from local hardware stores, to a Federal Postal Processing Plant.  
Hampden has two large fuel companies and a trucking company responsible for hauling heavy 
industrial fuels, chemicals, and building materials.  Hampden will soon be home to a 144,000 sq. 
ft. solid waste processing and recycling facility.  
 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 5 

 

The population of the Town of Hampden grew from 6,328 in 2000 to 7,257 in 2010, an increase 
of approximately 15%.  The estimated population in 2014 was 7,392.   

In January of 2017, OnlyInYourState.com highlighted the 10 best cities in Maine to raise a 
family.  Hampden was chosen as #1.   

Workload Trends  
  

Fire/EMS 

Hampden Fire/EMS-2010-2016 

 

The calls for service, as measured by a computer-aided dispatch program, ranged between a low 
of 308 in 2012 to a high of 369 in 2011.  Fire calls for service include building and cooking fires, 
hazardous material spills and other incidents requiring the response of a fire engine.   

The EMS calls for service, also measured by a computer program, ranged from a low of 604 in 
2013 to a high of 727 in 2015.  In 2012, Hampden Ambulance stopped conducting primary 
Advanced Lifesaving Support to neighboring communities.  This likely accounted for a brief 
reduction in calls from 674 in 2012, to 604 in 2013 and 605 in 2014.  The call volume increased 
substantially in 2015 to 727.   EMS calls for service include personal injury accidents, medical 
emergencies, search and rescue and other citizen requests for transport to the hospital.   

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

EMS FIRE



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 6 

 

Workload Trends:  Police  

Police-2010-2016 

 

Total Hampden Police Department calls for service, as measured by the Penobscot County wide 
computer-aided dispatch (CAD) program, ranged from a 4148 in 2015 and 2016 and 5084 in 
2011.  Calls for service include any report to Hampden Public Safety, criminal charges, citizen 
assists and self-initiated activity.      

Crime Trends - Index Crimes 
 

 

The FBI collects data from all law enforcement agencies.  This program is known as “UCR” 
(Uniform Crime Reporting). The data collected is limited to the offenses of murder, forcible 
rape, robbery, assault, burglary, larceny, motor vehicle theft, and arson. The data is used to 
measure trends and distribution of crime throughout the country.   

The crime index offenses were chosen for measuring purposes because combined, they represent 
the most common problems.  Crimes are further broken down into a violent crime category 
(murder, forcible rape, assault, and robbery), or a property crime category (burglary, larceny, 
motor vehicle theft, and arson). 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Calls for Service

Calls for Service

146 129 145 153 127 116 119

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 7 

 

 

It’s important to note that UCR data collected is based solely on police investigation as opposed 
to final dispositions.  One should also keep in mind that there is a vast array of crimes committed 
daily that do not fall into either of the two recognized UCR categories; and therefore, are not 
indexed under this program. More information about the UCR Program may be found here: 
http://www.maine.gov/dps/cim/crime_in_maine/cim.htm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 $-

 $20,000.00

 $40,000.00

 $60,000.00

 $80,000.00

 $100,000.00

 $120,000.00

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Annual Dollar Value of Property Stolen and 
Recovered in Hampden

Value of Property Stolen Property Recovered

http://www.maine.gov/dps/cim/crime_in_maine/cim.htm


HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 8 

Traffic Trends 

Motor vehicle crashes have been consistent over the past four years. 

Driving/Operating Under the Influence 

Between 2012 and 2016, Hampden saw an average of 22.4 arrests per year for driving under the 
influence of intoxicants. One component changed dramatically in 2015 and 2016, when we saw 
increase in the number of offenses occurring during the daytime hours (7:00 am – 7:00 pm).  The 
number of OUI offenses occurring during the daytime hours ranged from 10-17.39% between 
2012-2014.  However, in 2015, that percentage skyrocketed to 36.36%; and then increased even 
further, to 37.5% in 2016. 

The fact that more people are driving while impaired, and doing so during the hours that businesses 
and schools are open, is a serious, community-wide safety concern. 

Moving Violations 

2013 2014 2015 2016
Crashes 172 198 172 185
Daytime 125 133 122 135
Nighttime 47 64 50 50

0
50

100
150
200
250

Motor Vehicle Crash Data

Crashes Daytime Nighttime

0

5

10

15

20

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

IMPAIRED DRIVING OFFENSES DAY/NIGHT

7:00 am - 6:59 pm 7:00 pm-6:59 am Linear (7:00 am - 6:59 pm)



HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 9 

Between 2010 and 2016, Hampden Police Department issued nearly 12,000 traffic citations and 
warnings. This included nearly 900 citations for speeding and more than 200 seatbelt citations.  

Capital Improvement and Equipment 

A key component to a multi-year strategic plan is to identify capital improvement projects and 
long-range equipment needs.  Hampden Public Safety has identified the following projected 
expenditures: 

ITEM APPROX. COST REPLACEMENT DATE 

Police Vehicle  $17,000  2017-2018 
Radios  $30,000  2022-2025 
Fire Engine $400,000+ 2023 
Air Bottles $10,000  2020 
Ambulance $200,000 2026 
Thermal Imaging Camera $10,000  2016-2018 
Handguns $6,000 2019-2020 
Cardiac Monitor x 2  $80,000  2028 
Pickup Truck  $40,000  2018-2020 

Grants 

Hampden Public Safety has been extremely successful over the last several years in securing grants 
for equipment, training, and enforcement-related activities.  The following is a list of some of the 
equipment obtained through grants: 

• Brush Truck-$118,750
• Repeater, antenna, and associated communication equipment -$6,311
• Taser-$777
• Ballistic Shield-$1,136
• Air Packs-$59,850
• Physical Fitness-$7,952
• Cascade System-$38,000
• Jaws of Life-$44,888
• Turnout Gear-$16,378

Hampden Public Safety personnel will continue to seek grant opportunities to further enhance the 
equipment, training and ultimately the service to our citizens.    



HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 10 

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

2011-2013

2014-2016

Hampden PD Crash Data

Driver Distracted Total Crashes

Emerging Activity 

Fraud: The use of the internet, cell phones and other technology to facilitate criminal activity has 
increased over the last several years.  Scammers attempt to obtain personal and bank account 
information under false pretenses and/or through intimidation.   

Alzheimer’s/Dementia: The State of Maine has the highest median age in the country.  (44.2)   
The median age for residents of the Town of Hampden is 42.6.1  Hampden Public Safety has seen 
an increase in Alzheimer’s and Dementia related calls for service.  The calls include medical 
emergencies and search and rescue.   

Opiate Epidemic: In 2016, the State of Maine averaged one overdose death per day, totaling 376.  
This is a 39% increase over 2015, when 272 deaths were recorded.2  The Hampden Police 
Department began carrying Narcan in each of its vehicles in 2016.  Narcan has been administered 
fourteen times by Hampden Public Safety personnel since 2012, including twice by a police officer; 
and 2,380 times across the State of Maine in 2016 alone. This number is up from 1565 in 2015. 3 
The Town of Hampden has experienced two Fentanyl related overdose deaths since 2015.  The 
opiate epidemic has also been a factor in criminal activities such as burglaries and thefts.    

Distracted Driving:  In 2015, 3477 people were killed and 391,000 were injured in motor vehicle 
crashes resulting from distracted driving4.   In 2016, there were 3,395 crashes in Maine attributed to 
distracted driving. Of those, 191 were fatalities. 20% of the 3,395 crashes involved a driver talking, 
texting, or otherwise operating an electronic device.5  

                                        
1 https://www.maine-demographics.com/hampden-demographics 

2 http://bangordailynews.com/2017/02/02/news/state/a-deadly-record-maine-averaged-more-than-
an-overdose-death-per-day-in-2016 

3http://www.pressherald.com/2017/04/11/maine-breaks-record-for-drug-overdose-deaths-in-2016/ 

4 National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 

5 http://wgme.com/features/drive-safe/pay-attention-7-stats-about-distracted-driving-you-cant-
ignore 

In Hampden, we have seen an 
increase in the number of 
crashes caused by distracted 
drivers. Between 2011 and 
2013, 8.6% of the total crashes 
were determined to have been 
caused by distracted driving.  
Between 2014 and 2016, that 
percentage increased to 12.4%. 

https://www.maine-demographics.com/hampden-demographics
http://bangordailynews.com/2017/02/02/news/state/a-deadly-record-maine-averaged-more-than-an-overdose-death-per-day-in-2016
http://bangordailynews.com/2017/02/02/news/state/a-deadly-record-maine-averaged-more-than-an-overdose-death-per-day-in-2016
http://www.pressherald.com/2017/04/11/maine-breaks-record-for-drug-overdose-deaths-in-2016/
http://wgme.com/features/drive-safe/pay-attention-7-stats-about-distracted-driving-you-cant-ignore
http://wgme.com/features/drive-safe/pay-attention-7-stats-about-distracted-driving-you-cant-ignore


HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 11 

Community Services 

Hampden Public Safety endorses a customer service philosophy toward its citizens.  The following 
services are offered:   

• Residential and business property checks.
• Fingerprinting for employment
• Telecare Program (See Appendix #1)
• Good Neighbor Program (See Appendix #2)
• School Resource Officer at Hampden Academy
• Chimney Inspections
• Blood Pressure Clinics
• CPR/First Aid Courses
• EMS Clinical Rotation Site
• Rx Drug Collection
• Hampden Public Safety Citizen Advisory Committee
• Coffee with Hampden Public Safety (See Appendix #3)
• Motor vehicle lockouts
• Smoke Alarm/Red Cross Program (See Appendix #4)

Our Vision 
To enhance the quality of life for all citizens. 

Our Mission  
The Hampden Public Safety Department is committed to creating a safe environment for all 
citizens. This is done by working in partnership with the community to identify and resolve public 
safety concerns. All Hampden Public Safety employees are devoted to providing professional and 
progressive fire, medical and police services. 

Statement of Values 
Hampden Public Safety employees will: 

• Be accountable and responsive to the public.
• Display a high level of integrity in the performance of their duties.
• Be honest, sincere and compassionate.
• Strive for excellence.
• Treat citizens and co-workers with respect.
• Promote safety in all aspects of the job.
• Work cooperatively with citizens to address public safety concerns.



HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 12 

Goals 

1. CRIME:  A reduction in crime is an expectation of citizens.  This can be done by building
trust and developing partnerships with the community.  Reducing crime increases the
feeling of safety and improves the quality of life for all citizens.

2. COMMUNITY OUTREACH:  Building partnerships with the community is an essential
component of an effective public safety department.  Actively seeking opportunities to
engage citizens builds trust and legitimacy thus improving the effectiveness of public safety
services.

3. TRAFFIC SAFETY:  In 2014, over 32,000 lives were lost in the United States as a result
of a traffic crash.   The impact of these tragedies adversely affects states, communities,
neighborhoods and families.  Hampden Public Safety will work with citizens to promote
vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian safety.

4. RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION:  Hiring and retaining highly skilled, trained and
community minded employees is a core component to the success of Hampden Public
Safety.  Supporting individual growth and skill development will empower employees to
provide an exceptional public safety service to the community.

5. PRE-INCIDENT PLANNING:  Identifying and recognizing hazardous situations before a
critical incident occurs is essential to the safety of the community.  Hampden Public Safety
will collaborate with organizations, businesses, schools and other entities to identify and
develop plans to prevent, mitigate, respond to and recover from hazardous incidents.

6. RESPONSE TO SERVICE:  A safe and timely response promotes the protection of lives
and property.   Hampden Public Safety will monitor and strive to improve the response time
to calls for service.

7. PUBLIC EDUCATION: Providing educational opportunities to all demographics of the
community is essential.  A citizen armed with public safety knowledge can reduce the risk
of becoming a victim of crime and/or a fire and medical related incident.

8. TECHNOLOGY/EQUIPMENT: Technology is constantly evolving and expanding.
Hampden Public Safety will seek to utilize the latest technology advances in order to
engage and educate citizens.

9. PROMOTE HEALTH AND WELLNESS:  Healthy employees are more productive and
able to provide the highest quality service to citizens.  Hampden Public Safety will promote
and encourage a healthy lifestyle for all employees.



HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 13 

Plan for Attainment 

GOAL 1:  Crime 
1.1 Reduce crime, the fear of crime, and the causes of crime to help improve the quality of life for 
all citizens.   

Performance Measures: 

• Uniform Crime Reports
• Crime Rates
• Clearance Rates
• Spillman Data
• Citizen Surveys

Objectives: 

• Attend area crime and drug meetings, and disseminate information to all officers.
• Utilize drug intelligence information to obtain search warrants and build cases.
• Conduct more vigorous bail searches, particularly when affiliated with felony offenses.
• Improve citizen notifications related to crime trends, possibly utilizing the electronic sign.
• Identify crime trends more quickly and make patrol adjustment accordingly.
• Promote Tip Line on Facebook, Twitter, Hampden Highlights, etc.
• Investigate the acquisition of a tracking dog.
• Use Hot Spot mapping to monitor crime trends.
• Provide officer training on crime scene processing.  All officers should attend a basic crime

scene processing course.
• Obtain Maine Law Enforcement Accreditation.

GOAL 2:  Community Outreach 
2.1 Build trust and legitimacy through continued conversations with citizens, and work with the 
community to identify and resolve public safety concerns.   

Performance Measures: 

• The number of community outreach opportunities
• Social Media
• Citizen Advisory Committee
• Citizen Surveys



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 14 

 

Objectives: 

• Use social media to notify residents of crime trends.   
• Improve public safety website.  
• Put vignettes on social media. 
• Link website to Facebook. 
• Encourage citizens to follow us on social media applications.  Put information on business 

cards.   
• Post pictures of public safety employees on social media.  
• Provide information to residents via the town newsletter.   
• Conduct citizen survey every 3 or 4 years. (See Appendix 5 for Sample of 2011 Survey)   
• Determine and keep updated a list of community resources.  (food cupboards, drug 

resources)   
• Host an Open House annually with demonstrations to highlight equipment and skills.   
• Continue to promote smoke detector installation program with American Red Cross. 
• Investigate other social media opportunities.   
• Continue and expand the Good Neighbor Program. 
• Host an annual Citizen Public Safety Academy.   

GOAL 3:  Traffic Safety 
3.1 Reduce the number of injuries and property damage related to traffic crashes. 

Performance Measures: 

• The number of traffic crashes 
• The number of traffic related contacts, i.e. warnings, summonses etc.   
• The number of traffic stops 

Objectives: 

• Develop a traffic safety policy that assigns responsibilities to responders. 
• Pursue traffic related grants, focusing on one each year.  
• Consistently use the electronic sign. 
• Conduct directive patrols in high-crash zone areas.  Monthly reports on dates, times and 

locations. 
• Provide traffic-related information to the public through the website, Facebook, and other 

social media. 
• Consistently evaluate high traffic and crash areas.  Communicate with the Department of 

Transportation regarding engineering and signage issues, etc.   
• Encourage active traffic law enforcement. 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 15 

 

GOAL 4:  Recruitment and Retention 
4.1 Hire and retain highly skilled, trained, and community-minded employees, and support their 

personal growth and skills development.   

Performance Measures: 

• Monitor longevity and turnover. 
• Review size and caliber of applicant pools. 
• Utilize employee evaluations and encourage feedback. 

Objectives: 

• Maintain pay and benefits at competitive rates, and slightly above other similar agencies. 
• Allow employees to seek training to develop skills and knowledge. 
• Accentuate benefit package in job advertisements. 
• Continue monthly training program for call department members.   
• Implement a “Career Day” at Hampden Academy or UTC with involvement of the Live-in 

student. 
• Actively advertise call department opportunities via social media. 
• Increase full-time fire/EMS staffing to 12-13 employees.  
• Increase full-time police staffing to 12 employees.    

GOAL 5:  Pre-incident Planning  
5.1 Identify and develop plans to prevent, mitigate, respond to, and recover from hazardous 
incidents.   
 
Performance Measures:   

• The number of hazards identified.  
• The number of plans developed. 
• The number of hazardous incidents. 

Objectives: 

• Gather information, building layouts, and hazards within the business community. 
• Complete pre-plans for 75% of businesses in town. 
• Plan for catastrophic events such as ice storms, chemical spills, etc.  
• Conduct active shooter training every two years. 
• Review and modify responses to alarms when necessary.  (residential and banks) 
• Provide education and training to pharmacies and banks regarding robberies, and coordinate 

response plans with them. 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 16 

 

GOAL 6:  Response to service 
6.1 Respond to calls for service in a safe and timely manner.   

Performance Measures:   

• The number of public safety vehicle traffic crashes. 
• Response times. 

Objectives: 

• Fire and EMS personnel shall maintain a two-minute exit from the building during day 
shifts, and three minutes on night shifts. 

• Improve run cards to quickly facilitate activation of adequate resources. 
• Ensure PRCC has current response information. (hydrant locations, identifications, GPM, 

etc.)  
• Help increase the number of addresses clearly marked with numbers by promoting the 

house numbering program on the website and social media.  

GOAL 7:  Public Education 
7.1 Provide public safety related educational opportunities to all citizens to help improve safety and 
reduce crime.   

Performance Measures:   

• The number of educational opportunities provided. 
• The demographics reached.   
• The number of citizens attending educational opportunities.   
• Spillman data. 
• Uniform Crime Reports. 

Objectives:   

• Begin and maintain a relationship with the Hampden Business Association. 
• Consistently provide public safety educational programs at the junior high level. 
• Increase use of social media and website for educational purposes.   
• Provide on-going communication with citizens regarding current public safety trends.   
• Implement monthly CPR/First-Aid classes to citizens. 
• Visit each school a minimum of three times annually for public education. 
• Host quarterly sessions with the elderly communities to provide information and education.   

Reach out to senior housing locations. 
• Promote Home Box.   



HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 17 

GOAL 8:  Technology 
8.1 Implement technology to enhance community engagement and the effectiveness of public 
safety services.   

Performance Measures: 

• Timely fulfillment of FOAA requests.
• The number of technological advancements. 

Objectives: 

• Install a monitor in the apparatus bay to track responding resources.
• Acquire proximity access for station doors.
• Acquire automatic timers with close features for apparatus bays.
• Make officers aware of NESPIN and MIAC equipment.  Provide a list.
• Acquire a use-of-force simulator. Seek grant funds.
• Acquire Body Worn Cameras.  Seek grant funds.
• Acquire more sophisticated and elaborate cameras for the police vehicles.  Send someone to

training on the use.
• Acquire mapping equipment for accident reconstruction.  Seek grant funds.  Send someone

to training on the use.
• Acquire crime scene processing kits for each police vehicle.
• Obtain Hot Spot Mapping software to assist with tracking crime and crash trends.
• Update the roads layer sent to the State of Maine Office of GIS to include speed limits.
• Acquire an “I am Responding” computer in the television room and apparatus bay.

GOAL 9:  Promote Health and Wellness 
9.1 Create a work environment where good health and wellness is encouraged and promoted.  

Performance Measures:  

• Reduction in work place injuries.
• Reduction in the use of sick time.
• Successful completion of physical fitness standards.

Objectives: 

• Develop a measurable wellness program.
• Host a wellness seminar annually and discuss topics including PTSD and dealing with

stress, etc.
• Improve the hearing protection policy.



HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 18 

• Utilize Wellness Works programs through Maine Municipal Association.  Present at the
yearly public safety training.

• Promote the use of the Lura Hoit Pool.
• Provide more incentives to reach fitness goals.  In lieu of the yearly assessment, employees

provide documented gym sessions for a pre-determined period.
• Hire a fitness instructor to provide education on fitness and nutrition, along with the option

of individual meetings to formulate fitness plans.
• Offer extra incentive to employees who complete the yearly assessment in the 70th

percentile.



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 19 

 

 

Appendix #1 – Telecare Program 
 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 20 

 

GOOD NEIGHBOR PROGRAM 

Purpose:  Hampden Public Safety would like to provide support to families affected by Alzheimer’s, related 
Dementia or other memory or cognitive impairment issues.   This voluntary program is used to identify, 
monitor and assist families with the safety of their loved one.   

How do I get started?   The person with Alzheimer’s, related Dementia or other memory or cognitive 
impairment issues, or an authorized person, can begin the process of enrolling the affected person in the 
Good Neighbor Program.  The authorized person must submit documentation evidencing that person’s 
authority, such as a Power of Attorney, Guardianship, or Advance Directive.  The process begins by 
submitting a completed Participant Form to Hampden Public Safety.    
 
Where do I get the Participant Form?  The form is available at Hampden Public Safety; 106 Western Ave 
or on the website at  http://www.hampdenmaine.gov. 
 
What happens after the Participant Form is completed?  The information on the Form will be made 
available to public safety personnel should the person become lost or reported missing.  A member of 
Hampden Public Safety will also meet with the person and /or family to assist with providing resources if 
needed.  The information on the Participant Form will be kept confidential by the Town of Hampden to the 
greatest extent permitted by law, including the privacy of health information under the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA).  
 
How could the Good Neighbor Program be helpful?  The person with Alzheimer’s, related Dementia or 
other memory or cognitive impairment issues may leave that person’s residence or other location either on 
foot or in a vehicle and be unsure how to get back.  If someone calls to report the person missing, Hampden 
Public Safety will already have most of the required information, including a recent photo.  This will 
expedite the search process and significantly increase the chances of bringing the person home safely.    
 
Who qualifies for the Good Neighbor Program?  Any Hampden resident with Alzheimer’s, related 
Dementia or other memory or cognitive impairment issues. 
 
Is there any cost to participate in the Good Neighbor Program?  No.  This is a service provided by 
Hampden Public Safety. 
 
How long do I stay in the Program?  The affected person will remain in the Program until the person, or 
an authorized person, provides the Town with written notice of withdrawal from the Program.   Hampden 
Public Safety personnel will periodically contact the affected person, or the authorized person, to make sure 
that the information on the Participant Form is still accurate.  The photo may also be updated. 

 

Appendix #2 – Good Neighbor Program 
 

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/


  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 21 

 

 

Appendix #3 – Coffee with Public Safety 
 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 22 

 

 

Appendix #4 – Smoke Alarm Program 
 



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 23 

 

Hampden Public Safety 2011 Satisfaction Survey 

Police Synopsis 
 
How much of a problem are the following issues in Hampden? 
 

• Speeding        (84.9%-moderate/big problem) 
• Distracted Driving      (73.6%-moderate/big problem) 
• Drug Usage/Trafficking     (72.4%- moderate/big problem) 
• Underage Drinking      (61.9%- moderate/big problem) 

 
What police services do you feel are important to Hampden? 

• Crime prevention programs    (91.5%-important/very important) 
• Checking on the welfare of senior citizens  (91.5%-important/very important) 
• Criminal investigation     (91%- important/very important) 
• Education programs in grades K-12   (90.8%- important/very important) 
• Traffic enforcement     (85.2%- important/very important) 
• Drug enforcement      (84.2%- important/very important) 

 
How much impact do you think the following have in reducing crime around your property? 

• Reduced availability of illegal drugs.   (56.3%-big impact) 
• More visible   police presence.    (47.4%-big impact) 
• Willingness of citizens to report   (41.9%-big impact) 

 
Based on your personal experience with Hampden police officers, how would you rate them 
in the following categories:  

follow-up, courteousness, response to initial call, knowledge, professionalism, respect for 
citizens, problem solving and appearance. 

• All categories above 60% for good. 
• Professional appearance was the highest at 79.6% for good. 

 
How would you rate the overall performance of the police department? 

• 74% of respondents rated overall performance as “good”. 
 

Do you feel the police department is helping to raise the quality of life? 

• 73.7% of respondents indicated “yes” on this question. 
 

Appendix   #5 – 2011 Satisfaction Survey Synopsis



  
HPS STRATEGIC PLAN 2017 24 

 

Fire/EMS Synopsis 
 
 

Based on your personal experience with Hampden Fire/EMS, how would you rate them in 
the following categories:  

follow-up, courteousness, response to initial call, knowledge, professionalism, respect for 
citizens, problem solving and appearance. 

 
• All categories above 69% for good. 
• Response to initial call was the highest at 81.5% for good. 

 
Which fire/ems services do you feel are important? 
 

• Educational programs in grades k-12   (96.5%- important/very important) 
• Community relations     (96.5%- important/very important) 
• Fire Extinguisher training     (95.8%- important/very important) 
• Fire prevention programs for adults   (91.9%- important/very important) 
• CPR/AED courses      (91.9%-important/very important) 
• Chimney inspections     (90.4%- important/very important) 
• 40% of respondents felt walk-in blood pressure checks was not important. 

 
How would you rate the overall performance of the fire/ems department? 
 

• 89.3% of respondents rated the overall performance as “good”. 
 
To what extent do you know the firefighters/EMS providers? 
 

• 13.1% know them by name 
• 35.7% know them by face 
• 51.2% don't know them at all 

 
Do you feel the fire/ems department is helping to raise the quality of life? 

• 80% responded with “yes”. 
 

All things considered, I am happy with Hampden Public Safety. 

• 78.5% agree 
• I 0.1% slightly agree 
• 5.1% slightly disagree 
• 6.3% disagree 

 



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-3-a



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-3-b



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-3-c



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-3-d



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-3-e



  
TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  December 13, 2017 

RE:  Mold in the Public Safety and Town Office building 
 

 

Following up on staff concerns, expressed over time, regarding interior air quality in the 
Public Safety building, we hired a building inspector to conduct an inspection and run 
some samples of what appeared to be mold.  We received the enclosed report on Nov. 
30 which confirms the presence of mold in many locations.  The report recommends 
that a licensed mold remediation company be retained to address the issue. 
 
The exercise room on the lower level has been closed due to the presence of black 
mold. 
 
The initial scope of review was limited to the Public Safety building, not the Town 
Offices, and we wanted to look at remediation of the entire building.  We initially 
requested a proposal for additional investigation and recommendations by a separate 
firm, with the intent that this would lead to a specific scope of work that could be put out 
to bid.  However, the cost proposal was nearly $7,000 and, upon contacting a licensed 
mold remediation vendor, we decided to provide them access to the building so they 
could evaluate the problem and propose remediation based on their findings. 
 
On Friday, December 8, we met with Eastern Mold Remediation, who spent over 6 
hours reviewing the building and have since provided us a proposal for remediation. 
The proposal is 30 pages, quite detailed, including measurements of each room's 
dimensions, specific proposed remediation for each room, indoor humidity testing, etc., 
at a proposed cost of nearly $95,000.1  This is more than triple what we have available 
in the Municipal Building Reserve, and is not the complete cost since other post-
remediation work would be needed (electrical, replacing carpet, replacing floor tile, etc.). 
 
Based on the orders of magnitude costs, I see two potential options to ensure that we 
receive competitive pricing: 
 

1. Prepare a detailed scope, then seek bids.  We do not have the expertise on staff 
to do so, and this would require some cost in order to manage the scoping and 
bidding process. 

2. Alternatively, we could prepare a more limited description of the problem, include 
the McClarie report as an attachment, and invite each prospective vendor to 
perform their own inspections based on the same access to the building that was 

                                            
1 I have not included the Eastern Mold proposal in the meeting packet so as not to potentially 
disadvantage them within a future purchasing process. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-a  D-5-b  D-5-c



provided to Eastern Mold, and propose their own approach to remediation.  Each 
prospective vendor would be invited to propose both a scope and budget.  This 
would not result in an “apples to apples” comparison, because different vendors 
may recommend different remediation.  However, this is the recommended 
approach to purchasing, in order to move forward more quickly and to avoid the 
need for up-front costs.  

 
I therefore request Council authorization to waive the Bid Procedures for Public 
Purchasing pursuant to Sec. 4(a), to allow us to solicit quotations from at least 
three prospective vendors, rather than preparing a detailed scope and formal 
RFP.  Due to the anticipated cost of the work, the award of a contract to a specific 
vendor would come back before the Council for approval. 
 
I also seek Council approval of a budget adjustment in order to transfer $100,000 
from FY18 Overlay to the Municipal Building Reserve for the purpose of mold 
remediation and related expenses.  The FY18 mil rate resulted in an overlay amount 
of $234,508 which would be reduced by the requested budget adjustment.  By leaving 
the current balance in the Municipal Building Reserve ($31,598) intact, this would not 
reduce the funds available for other anticipated reserve funding projects including the 
public safety flooring ($20k of the balance is earmarked for this purpose) and $5k 
earmarked for future roof replacement. 
 
Finally, I request Council authorization of Municipal Building Reserve funds in the 
amount of $100,000.  This is not expected to cover the complete costs of remediation, 
but would to allow us to proceed in good faith with inviting vendor proposals.   
 
The authorized reserve funding would also be eligible for costs related to mold 
remediation, many if not all would probably not be included in the primary work scope.  
A preliminary list of potential (or known) related costs follows: 
 
Other Costs related to Mold Remediation 

- Duct cleaning 

- HVAC system cleaning 

- Additional ventilation in lower level (new ceiling fans) 

- Replace stained or damaged ceiling tiles (included in proposed Eastern scope) 

- Electrical services to swap out motion sensor switches for improved ventilation 

- Staff overtime as necessary to prepare the building for remediation, remove all 

files and re-file, etc.  

- Potential security company or staff time to monitor the building during contractor 

work.  (Eastern’s proposal was based on their weekend and 24-hour shift rate). 

- Contractor to remove floor tiles, carpet, base molding, etc. 

- Materials 

o Floor tile, carpet etc. 

o Replacement equipment (treadmill, TV, mattresses, mattress covers, fans) 

- Possible future dehumidification 

- Plastic totes for all existing files 

- Potential housing for live-in – fire intern 

- Cost of potential closure of town office during anti-microbial treatment 



 
If any of these related costs would exceed $10,000, the Council may be requested to 
separately authorize purchasing via a quotation system in favor of an RFP. 
 
We expect some disruption of Town operations will be unavoidable to accommodate the 
work, which may include limited closure of the building or certain departments.  Once a 
vendor is selected we would put together a schedule with the goal of getting the work 
done efficiently while minimizing disruptions. 
 
We have submitted information to our Property/Casualty Insurer, MMA, and we expect 
that insurance may cover up to $50,000 of costs.  We hope to have more definitive 
information on the insurance coverage before Monday’s meeting. 

























townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-d













townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-e



12/7/2017 1 of 1

Eligible Costs Incurred, Proposed for Environmental Trust Reimbursement
1,856.80$      4,185.00$        2,949.35$      5,085.00$      340.77$         

Date Paid Vendor Purpose Expense Category of Stormwater Management Cost Source of Proposed Reimbursement

Maintenance
Compliance 

Documentation
Supplies

Contracted 

Services

Training/ 

Travel
Principal Income Receipt

Date to Env. 

Trust

07/01/17 08/16/17
 Bangor Area Stormwater 

Group 
 2017-18 membership dues 4,000.00$     4,000.00$        4,000.00$          Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
1,548.00$     1,548.00$      1,548.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/12/17 08/02/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 180.00$        180.00$         180.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/19/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 720.00$        720.00$         720.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 Whitmore Contracting Inc.  Griffin Ave culvert replacement 4,185.00$     4,185.00$      4,185.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 540.00$        540.00$         540.00$            Y 9/12/2017

08/15/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

08/22/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

09/04/17 09/06/17 Sean Currier

 Mileage and expenses for DPW 

Director and Code Enf. Officer to 

attend 2-day stormwater training, 

Portland 

340.77$        340.77$         340.77$            Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
(1,548.00)$    (1,548.00)$     (1,548.00)$         N/A

1 12/12/2017

08/09/17 09/13/17 NASCO  Write-on bags for sampling 62.15$          62.15$          62.15$              Y 12/12/2017

08/22/17 09/28/17 Harriman Sons  Digging out Patterson Rd culvert 900.00$        900.00$         900.00$            Y 12/12/2017

09/14/17 09/20/17 00134 Drumlin LLC  TECHNICAL CONSULTANT 4,036.00$     4,036.00$   Y 12/12/2017

10/03/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 838.40$        838.40$         838.40$            Y 12/12/2017

10/04/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

11/01/17 11/15/17 State of Maine
 MS4 General Permit fee for Plan 

Year 5 
185.00$        185.00$           185.00$            Y 12/12/2017

11/09/17 11/29/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

YTD reimbursed to General Fund: 13,140.97$        

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund (12/12/17): 5,311.95$          

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund: 18,452.92$     

YTD For 12/12/17

Total from Principal 4,036.00$          4,036.00$          

Total from Income 14,416.92$        1,275.95$          

Budgeted revenue 72,345.00$        FY18 Town Budget

Remaining budgeted revenue (FY18) 53,892.08$        

1
 Note: This expense was reimbursed by the Trust Committee at its 9/12/17 meeting. However it was reclassified as an FY17 expense, so the amount reimbursed is credited against the current reimbursement request.

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager

12/7/2017

Angus Jennings, Town Manager M:\!Angus files\Environmental Trust\Workbook of expenditures for Environmental Trust reimbursement



townmanager
Typewritten Text

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-f



12/7/2017 1 of 1

Eligible Costs Incurred, Proposed for Environmental Trust Reimbursement
1,856.80$      4,185.00$        2,949.35$      5,085.00$      340.77$         

Date Paid Vendor Purpose Expense Category of Stormwater Management Cost Source of Proposed Reimbursement

Maintenance
Compliance 

Documentation
Supplies

Contracted 

Services

Training/ 

Travel
Principal Income Receipt

Date to Env. 

Trust

07/01/17 08/16/17
 Bangor Area Stormwater 

Group 
 2017-18 membership dues 4,000.00$     4,000.00$        4,000.00$          Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
1,548.00$     1,548.00$      1,548.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/12/17 08/02/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 180.00$        180.00$         180.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/19/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 720.00$        720.00$         720.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 Whitmore Contracting Inc.  Griffin Ave culvert replacement 4,185.00$     4,185.00$      4,185.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 540.00$        540.00$         540.00$            Y 9/12/2017

08/15/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

08/22/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

09/04/17 09/06/17 Sean Currier

 Mileage and expenses for DPW 

Director and Code Enf. Officer to 

attend 2-day stormwater training, 

Portland 

340.77$        340.77$         340.77$            Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
(1,548.00)$    (1,548.00)$     (1,548.00)$         N/A

1 12/12/2017

08/09/17 09/13/17 NASCO  Write-on bags for sampling 62.15$          62.15$          62.15$              Y 12/12/2017

08/22/17 09/28/17 Harriman Sons  Digging out Patterson Rd culvert 900.00$        900.00$         900.00$            Y 12/12/2017

09/14/17 09/20/17 00134 Drumlin LLC  TECHNICAL CONSULTANT 4,036.00$     4,036.00$   Y 12/12/2017

10/03/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 838.40$        838.40$         838.40$            Y 12/12/2017

10/04/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

11/01/17 11/15/17 State of Maine
 MS4 General Permit fee for Plan 

Year 5 
185.00$        185.00$           185.00$            Y 12/12/2017

11/09/17 11/29/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

YTD reimbursed to General Fund: 13,140.97$        

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund (12/12/17): 5,311.95$          

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund: 18,452.92$     

YTD For 12/12/17

Total from Principal 4,036.00$          4,036.00$          

Total from Income 14,416.92$        1,275.95$          

Budgeted revenue 72,345.00$        FY18 Town Budget

Remaining budgeted revenue (FY18) 53,892.08$        

1
 Note: This expense was reimbursed by the Trust Committee at its 9/12/17 meeting. However it was reclassified as an FY17 expense, so the amount reimbursed is credited against the current reimbursement request.

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager

12/7/2017

Angus Jennings, Town Manager M:\!Angus files\Environmental Trust\Workbook of expenditures for Environmental Trust reimbursement



To: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
From: Karen M. Cullen, AICP, Town Planner 
Date: December 14, 2017 
RE: Acquisition of Floating Dock – Request for Waiver of Purchasing Procedures 

This request is to waive the purchasing requirements under the Town Public Purchasing Procedures 
for the purchase of the floating docks for the public boat landing on the Penobscot River, located 
adjacent to the marina. This waiver is sought because there is only one vendor we can find that 
we feel confident can provide floating docks within our timeframe (installation in spring 2018) 
that can withstand the varying tides and challenging currents in this location. When preparing the 
grant application for this project, our partner Hamlin’s Marine had contacted Custom Float Service 
to obtain cost information for this floating dock. Hamlin’s Marine has advised us that they have the 
most confidence in this company to get the job done well, in budget, and on time because they 
have significant experience working with municipalities, they have the capacity to complete the 
job in time for installation this spring, they build a very robust dock system that will probably last 
twice as long as the current floating docks, and they specialize in dock systems (they do not do 
general marine or boat yard work).   

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

Memorandum 

D-5-g



  
TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  December 13, 2017 

RE:  Recommended sewer abatement, 29 Sunrise Lane 
 

 

Please find enclosed a resident’s request for sewer abatement. 
 

The sewer abatement process has worked well since the Sewer Ordinance was 
amended in January 2017 to define a process for considering abatements. However, 
the present situation is not addressed by the Ordinance, which includes a “look back” at 
the property’s prior water consumption as a basis for allowable abatement. 
 

This request relates to a newly constructed home with no water consumption history. 
However, we are aware that the homes on Sunrise Lane did not initially have lawns, 
and the resident’s account of heavy lawn watering for a period of months makes sense.  
 

This situation would typically justify an abatement since a portion of the water usage 
reflected on the water bill (which is the basis for sewer billing) was never discharged 
into the sewer system and, therefore, did not add to the Town’s sewer costs. 
 

Hampden Sewer Ordinance, Sec. 10.3. Abatements: Abatements for use of water for lawn 
sprinklers, garden hoses, filling of swimming pools, or other uses of significant volumes of 
water, which do not enter the public sewer, may be made on application to the Town.  
 

The adjusted billing determined shall not be less than the highest billing or adjusted billing 
applicable to the property during the previous three quarters. The Town shall require 
verification of the significant sewer usage which is cause for the requested abatement.  
 

The Town Manager or his/her designee shall approve or deny abatements. No more than 
one (1) abatement can be given in one (1) calendar year except upon petition to the Town 
Council. 

 

To estimate a reasonable “baseline” water usage for the property, we looked at three 
other sewer accounts for homes occupied by a single resident. Records for the three 
“comp” properties for the prior three quarters showed water consumption of 900-900-
900, 500-400-500, and 700-600-600 (all in CF). 
 

The Ordinance provides that abatements shall not reduce the billed amount below the 
highest of the previous three quarters. If 900 CF is used as the baseline, this would 
support an abatement of 4,900 CF on the bill for 29 Sunrise Lane, which would translate 
to a bill reduction of $568.40 (from $672.80 reduced to $104.40). 
 

I would typically approve an abatement based on the facts presented. However, based 
on the unusual circumstance in this case, and the methodology which doesn’t track 
exactly to the Ordinance language, I am presenting it to the Council for action.  

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-h



Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Request for Sewer Abatement
1 message

Seren Bruce Mon, Nov 20, 2017 at 12:04 PM
To: townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov

Dear Town Manager, 

Danielle instructed me to write to you and request an abatement on my sewer bill. 

I purchased 29 Sunrise Lane on June 29th of this year and moved in on June 30th.  My lawn had just been put in about a
week or so before I moved in and required daily watering. I ran 2 hoses with sprinklers at full force daily for approximately
2 hours a day on days when we did not receive rain.  This was daily for July, August and September, about 2 times
weekly for October.  I estimate that for the first 3 months I watered 5 out of 7 days each week as we had a terribly dry
summer. My lot is just under .5 acres. 

I wasn’t aware of the summer meter until late in the season at which time I purchased one. At that point I was watering
infrequently. My meter currently reads 700. 

I am a retired widow, living alone in my new home. Hope this info helps in estimating an abatement! Let me know if there
is any other information I can provide. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Seren Bruce 
29 Sunrise Lane 
Hampden, ME





TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

Order 2017-07 

Adoption: December XX, 2017 

ORDER ADOPTING UPDATED TRANSFER STATION DECAL POLICY 

ORDERED, that the Town Council hereby approves an updated Transfer Station Decal 

Issuance Policy, to read as written below. Text additions from the previous version of the 

Policy are shown as underlined text; text deletions are marked with strikethrough. 

TRANSFER STATION DECAL ISSUANCE POLICY 

The Hampden Transfer Station is for the use of Hampden residential property owners and 

renters who occupy single family residential units or a residence in a multi-unit 

development of four or fewer units.  No vehicle will be allowed entry to the Transfer 

Station without a current decal. A grace period is provided for vehicles with a valid decal 

from the prior year, which will be allowed entry during the month of January only. 

Decals may be purchased at the Town Office during normal business hours at a cost 

specified in the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinance. 

1. The vehicle registration of the vehicle on which the decal will go must be

presented at the time of sticker decal issuance.

2. To qualify for a residential decal, a vehicle must be registeredapplicants must

provide proof of current residence in Hampden.  Residents who otherwise qualify

for a sticker decal but who have company-owned vehicles not registered in

Hampden , without the company name or logo on the vehicle, may receive a paper

pass for that vehicle for the year for the $10 feeresidential decal pursuant to

Section 4 below.

3. Seasonal Non-rResident applicants must own single family residential property

not used solely for rental purposes and provide proof of vehicle registration. An

owner-occupant of property that includes one or more residential rental units will

be eligible to purchase a decal.

4. Businesses are not generally eligible to purchase decals or utilize the Transfer

Station. No stickers Decals will only be issued for commercial

construction/contractor vehicles registered to a business, and/or with company

name or logo on the vehicle, if the vehicle is owned by an eligible resident of

Hampden or serves as the resident’s personal vehicle. In this situation, the owner

of the vehicle will be required to provide documentation that the company has a

current commercial waste disposal contract, . The requirement to document a

commercial waste disposal contract may be waived for companies that do not

generate commercial waste in the normal course of business (i.e. accountants,

realtors). regardless of place of registration.

Ivan P. McPike (Mayor, A/L) 

Stephen L. Wilde (1) 

Dennis R. Marble (2) 

Terry McAvoy (3) 

David I. Ryder (4) 

 Mark S. Cormier (A/L) 

Gregory J. Sirois (A/L) 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-i



5. Stickers Decals will not be issued to trucks other than pickups with a regular pick-

up bed of no more than 8 feet.

6. Transfer station decals must be permanently affixed to the inside of the

windshield on the driver’s side of the vehicle for which it was issued. Plate

numbers on the decal must match the plate number on the vehicle.

7. Vehicles without a decal or appropriate paper pass a Temporary Vehicle Pass will

not be allowed access to the transfer station.

8. Decals are non-refundable. A replacement decal will not be provided unless the

original decal purchased is returned to the Town Office. A refund for Refrigerant 

Disposal Stickers will not be provided unless the original sticker purchased is 

returned to the Town Office in saleable condition. 

9. A Temporary Vehicle Pass usable only on dates specified on the Pass will be sold

to seasonal residents, and non-resident caretakers of local residents, at a cost 

specified in the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinance. Seasonal residents seeking a 

Temporary Vehicle Pass will be required to provide documentation of the term of 

local rental. Non-resident caretakers of local residents will be required to provide 

documentation of their relationship to the local resident(s) under their care. Upon 

documentation of local residence (or seasonal occupancy), a Temporary Vehicle 

Pass may be issued for a rental car. 

10. A Temporary Vehicle Pass may be issued to a non-Hampden resident living

locally only upon documentation that the person is living in Hampden on a 

temporary basis due to displacement from their primary residence resulting from 

fire, mold remediation, etc.  

7.11. The holder of a Temporary Vehicle Pass must accompany the vehicle for 

which the Pass was obtained. Commercial vehicles or contractor vehicles or larger 

than a full-sized pick-up are not eligible for a Temporary Vehicle Pass. 

This policy was amended by the Hampden Town Council on 2/17/2009, and on 

10/5/2015 and on 12/XX/2017. The effective date of the revised policy is December XX, 

2017. 

Town Clerk: ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

_____________________________ _____________________________________ 

Paula Scott 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________ 



Rev. 10/05/2015 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

 

Order 2017-08 

Adoption: December XX, 2017 

 

ORDER ADOPTING UPDATED TRANSFER STATION RULES & REGULATIONS  

 

ORDERED, that the Town Council hereby approves updated Transfer Station Rules and Regulations, 

to read as written on the attached pages. Text additions from the previous version of the Rules & 

Regulations are shown as underlined text; text deletions are marked with strikethrough. 

 

This policy was amended by the Hampden Town Council on 10/5/2015 and on 12/XX/2017. The 

effective date of the revised policy is December XX, 2017. 

 

 

 

Town Clerk:     ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________________ 

Paula Scott 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

 

Ivan P. McPike (Mayor, A/L) 

Stephen L. Wilde (1) 

Dennis R. Marble (2) 

Terry McAvoy (3) 

David I. Ryder (4) 

 Mark S. Cormier (A/L) 

Gregory J. Sirois (A/L) 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-j



Rev. 10/05/2015 

T0WN OF HAMPDEN 

SOLID WASTE TRANSFER STATION RULES & REGULATIONS 

 

The Town of Hampden has a Solid Waste Transfer Station located at the Public Works Facility 
on the Canaan Road. This facility is for disposal of Hampden residential trash only.  

 No Commercial Haulers allowed 
 No Contractor vehicles allowed 

 
PERMITSTRANSFER STATION DECALS 
A permit decal on the vehicle is required for access to the facility. Permits Decals are available at 
the Town Office at a cost specified in the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinanceof $10 per sticker per 
vehicle per calendar year.  A current vehicle registration must be presented annually in 
order to obtain a stickerdecal. Eligibility requirements are specified in the Transfer Station 
Decal Issuance Policy. Only year round residents or seasonal residents who do not use their 
property for rental purposes are eligible to purchase stickers. Businesses and residents of 
apartment or private complexes with more than four units are not eligible to purchase stickers 
or utilize the Transfer Station.  No vehicle will be allowed entry to the Transfer Station after 
February 1st of each year without a current decal. A grace period is provided for vehicles with a 

valid decal from the prior year, which will be allowed entry during the month of January only. 
 
A one-day permitTemporary Vehicle Pass is available for a resident to obtain in order to use a 
borrowed vehicle. To acquire this, bring the number of your existing permit to the Town Office 
and ask for a Temporary Vehicle Permit.  The permit is available at no charge and is valid for one 
day only. You must accompany the vehicle for which you obtained the permit and the vehicle 
cannot be a commercial or contractor vehicle or larger than a full-sized pick upbased on 
eligibility and requirements specified in the Transfer Station Decal Policy. 
 

HOURS OF OPERATION   CLOSED ALL LEGAL HOLIDAYS 
MONDAY – CLOSED    New Year’s Day  Labor Day 
TUESDAY – CLOSED    Martin Luther King Day Columbus Day 
WEDNESDAY – 10 A.M. – 6 P.M.  President’s Day  Veteran’s Day  
THURSDAY – 10 A.M. – 6 P.M.  Patriot’s Day   Thanksgiving Day  
FRIDAY – 10 A.M. – 6 P.M.   Memorial Day   Day after Thanksgiving  
SATURDAY – 8 A.M. – 4 P.M.   4th of July   Christmas Day    
SUNDAY – 8 A.M. – 4 P.M.        
      EARLY CLOSURES 
      December 24 (close at noon) 
      December 31 (close at 2 pm)            
WEATHER RELATED CLOSURES 
During severe winter weather, the DPW Director may close the Transfer Station on a temporary 
basis to direct available personnel resources toward weather-related needs. All such temporary 
closures will be posted to the Town’s website and Facebook page with as much prior notice as 
possible. 

 
DISPOSAL SCHEDULE 

SOLID WASTE - 
ACCEPTED ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS OPEN.  



Rev. 10/05/2015 

SHARPS DISPOSAL – 
 ACCEPTED ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS OPEN.  THERE IS A 

SEPARATE RECEPTACLE AT THE TRANSFER STATION FOR SHARPS DISPOSAL 
SWAP SHOP ITEMS – 

ARE ACCEPTED AT THE ‘SWAP SHOP’ ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS 
OPEN, AND MAY BE TAKEN FROM THE ‘SWAP SHOP’ ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER 
STATION IS OPEN. 

RECYCLABLES – 
 ACCEPTED ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS OPEN. 
CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION DEBRIS, WOOD, METAL, APPLIANCES AND ASPHALT 
SHINGLES – 

THESE ITEMS ARE ACCEPTED ON THE 2ND AND 4TH WEEKEND OF EACH MONTH ONLY.   
 
REFRIGERANT DISPOSAL FEE –  
 There is a $15 fee for the disposal of any appliance with refrigerant (refrigerators, 
freezers, some air conditioners).  A permit sticker for the disposal of such items must be picked 
up at the Town Office prior to disposal, and these items can only be taken to the transfer station 
on the second and fourth weekends of each month. Permit stickers must be affixed to the item. 
 
BEFORE YOU GO TO THE TRANSFER STATION DISPOSAL TIPS… 
 
TELEVISIONS, COMPUTER PARTS and FLUORESCENT LAMPS are accepted any time the Transfer 
Station is open. 
TIRES all must have rims removed. No more than four tires will be accepted. 
PAINT CANS must be empty and rinsed out with lids removed. 
METAL BARRELS, 5, 30, AND 55 GALLON DRUMS must have at least one end removed and they 
must be washed out. 
LEAVES, GRASS, AND YARD AND GARDEN CLIPPINGS must be bagged and disposed of in the 
trash compactors along with solid waste. 
TREE LIMBS AND BRANCHES – Must not exceed 10’ in length and are acceptable only on the 2nd 
and 4th weekends of each month. 
 
ZERO-SORT RECYCLING 
 The Town of Hampden operates a Zero-Sort recycling program at the Transfer Station. 
There is a separate compactor at the facility in which many recyclables are deposited.  There is 
no need to separate these recyclable materials, however, if they are disposed of in a bag, the bag 
must be clear plastic in order to be placed in the compactor.  
 
 Recyclable materials that can be deposited in the Zero-Sort Compactor include: 
 Magazines & Books    Newspaper 
 File folders & office paper   Mail & Greeting cards 
 Corrugated cardboard   Paperboard boxes 
 Paper Cartons    Plastic Containers 
 Large Rigid Plastics    Metal cans 
 Glass bottles 
  
 Non-recyclable items that cannot be deposited in the Zero-Sort compactor include: 
 Plastic bags     Mirrors 



Rev. 10/05/2015 

 Window Glass    Light bulbs 
 Dishes      Pyrex 
 Ceramics     Paper Towels 
 Facial tissue     Styrofoam 
 Recyclables containing food waste  Paints 
 Oils      Hazardous material    

Needles     Syringes 
VCR tapes     CD’s/DVD’s 
Scrap Metal     Pots or Pans 

 
 

UNACCEPTABLE WASTES 
 AUTOMOTIVE PARTS containing hazardous fluids including batteries, engines, 

transmissions, etc. These items should be disposed of in a salvage yard. 
 STUMPS will not be accepted. 
 HAZARDOUS WASTE will not be accepted. This includes paint thinners, cleaners, 

poisons, asbestos, chemicals, and petroleum products such as gas, oil and 
kerosene. 

 
COMPOSTING 
 The Town of Hampden is making every effort to protect our environment and to keep 
waste disposal costs as low as possible. In addition to observing the guidelines above, you can 
help reduce the amount of waste that you produce in your home.  Home composting, for 
example, is easy to do and not only reduces the waste stream, but produces usable garden 
fertilizer.  The Town participates annually in the State Planning Office Home Composter Program 
by subsidizing the cost of home composters for interested Hampden residents. To find out more 
about home composting and when the next composter order will be placed - call Rosemary the 
Department of Public Works at 862-3337. 
 
 

QUESTIONS? CALL ROSEMARY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AT 862-3337. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




